
 

 
 

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL 
PUBLIC SERVICE PLAZA 
CIVIC CENTRE ROAD 
HAVANT 
HAMPSHIRE P09 2AX 
 

Telephone: 023 9247 4174 
Fax: 023 9248 0263 
Website: www.havant.gov.uk 
 

 

 

 

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE AGENDA 
 

Membership:      Councillor Keast (Chairman) 
 
Councillors Milne and Rennie 
 

 

Meeting: Licensing Sub Committee 

Date: Tuesday 16 June 2020 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: Remote Meeting - Via Skype for Business 

 
The business to be transacted is set out below:  
 
David Brown 
Monitoring Officer 
 
8 June 2020 
 
Contact Officer: Mark Grgeory 023 9244 6232 
 Email:  mark.gregory@havant.gov.uk 
 

  Page 

1  Declarations of Interests   
 

 

2  Licensing Hearing   
 

1 - 64 

http://www.easthants.gov.uk/


 

 
ii 

 GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

 IF YOU WOULD LIKE A VERSION OF THIS AGENDA, OR 
ANY OF ITS REPORTS, IN LARGE PRINT, BRAILLE, 
AUDIO OR IN ANOTHER LANGUAGE PLEASE CONTACT 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES ON 023 9244 6231 
 

Internet 
 

This agenda and its accompanying reports can also be found on the Havant 
Borough Council website: www.havant.gov.uk 
 

Public Attendance and Participation 
 

The meeting will be streamed live online to enable members of the public to 
watch in real time. The meeting will also be recorded and the recording will be 
published on the council’s website.   
  
IP addresses will not not collected, however in order to function, Skype for 
Business collects background data limited to when a user enters and leaves 
the meeting and the web browser version used.  Data collected will be kept 
and recorded for the purposes of this meeting.  
 
The Council’s deputation procedures do not apply to this meeting.   
 

 

http://www.havant.gov.uk/


 

NON EXEMPT  

                

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
Licensing Sub-Committee  
 
Licensing Act 2003, New Premises Application, Beachlands 
Convenience Store, Unit 2, 9 Seafront, Hayling Island.   
 
  
FOR DECISION BY THE LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
 
Head of Service (Neighbourhood Support):  
 
Mrs N Meagher 
 
Key Decision: No  
 

 
1.0   Purpose of Report  
 

 This report is submitted to the Licensing Sub-Committee to consider an application 
for a premises licence made by Mr Kathermali Ganesh Vijaendrann for 
Beachlands Convenience Store, Unit 2, 9 Seafront, Hayling Island under the 
Licensing Act 2003.   

 
2.0   Recommendation  
 

 The Licensing Sub-Committee is requested to determine the application for a new 
premises licence following receipt of relevant representations. 

 

 In making determination the Licensing Sub-Committee must, having regard to the 
application and relevant representations, take such steps as it considers 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. The steps the Authority 
can take are: 

 
• grant the application as applied for; 
• modify the conditions of the licence, by altering, omitting, or adding to them; 
• exclude any licensable activity from the scope of the licence to which the 
application relates; 
• refuse to specify a person as a designated premises supervisor; 
• reject the application. 
 

       The Licensing Sub-Committee must have regard to: 
 

Licensing Act 2003 
Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 
Havant Borough Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



 

3.0       Executive Summary  
 

 Background 
 
The proposed premises is situated at Unit 2, 9 Seafront, Hayling Island.  Also 
situated in the road is Funlands Amusement Park and Beachlands Amusement 
Park (site map attached at Appendix A).    
 
The applicant and nominated Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS), currently 
holds a premises licence and the post of DPS at Riley’s Convenience Store, Rails 
Lane, Hayling Island.  
  
He has also previously held premises licences and fulfilled the post of DPS at VJ 
Wines, Station Road, Hayling Island and Elly’s Wine Stores, Rails Lane, Hayling 
Island (both licences cancelled by applicant). 
 

 Premises Licence Application 
 
The application detailed the following times for opening hours and off-sales of 
alcohol: 
 
All week     06.00 – 23.00 
 
The application was originally submitted on 21st January 2020 however due to a 
couple of mis-timings with advertising the application, the 28-day consultation was 
re-started on 24th February with a closing date for representations of 23rd March. 
 
A copy of the application and supporting information are attached at Appendix B 
 

 Mandatory Conditions and Operating Schedule 
 
Every licensed premises must comply with mandatory conditions set by the 
Government which form part of the licence; these are attached at Appendix C. 
 
The applicant has described, in the operating schedule, the steps he intends to 
take to promote the four licensing objectives; prevention of crime and disorder, 
public safety, prevention of public nuisance and protection of children from harm 
as detailed below. The operating schedule forms part of the licence conditions: 
 
Prevention of Crime and Disorder: 
 

1. Installation of CCTV around the building as well as notices indicating the 
presence of CCTV. 

2. Customers not allowed to consume alcohol on the site. 
3. Staff training on emergency situations and general safety. 
4. Crime prevention notices such as thieves will be prosecuted. 
5. Prevent sales to customers already intoxicated. 
6. Incident book recording events occurring on the site 

 
 

Page 2



 

 
Promotion of Public Safety: 
 

1. First aid kit on site. 
2. Fire extinguisher on site. 
3. Fire risk assessments. 

 
Prevention of Public Nuisance: 
 

1. No smoking signs on the site. 
2. No littering signs. 
3. No bright lights outside near night hours. 
4. Reports any consumption of alcohol outside or inside the premises to the 

Police 
5. Sign banning consumption of alcohol on site. 

 
Protection of Children from Harm: 
 

1. Age proved by ID which must be accredited by PASS or a passport or 
photo driving licence. 

2. Any attempt by underage person to buy alcohol will be recorded on the 
refusal book and Police informed. 

3. Refusals book to be checked by the supervisor on a weekly basis. 
4. Challenge 25 policy. 

 

 Responsible Authorities  
 
The Responsible Authorities were consulted on the application with the following 
responses: 
 
Home Office: No response 
Hampshire Fire & Rescue: No representation 
Environmental Health (Commercial): No representation 
Environmental Health (Environment): No representation 
Primary Care Trust: No response 
Licensing: No representation 
Planning: No representation 
HCC Social Services: No response 
HCC Trading Standards: Trading Standards requested conditions to be added to 
the premises licence, if granted, as detailed below.  Trading Standards stated they 
have no objection to the licence provided the conditions were added.  These were 
agreed with the applicant during the consultation period.  
 Police: Hampshire Constabulary requested conditions to be added to the premises 
licence, if granted, as detailed below.  Hampshire Constabulary stated they have 
no objection to the licence provided the conditions were added.  These were 
agreed with the applicant during the consultation period.  
 
 
 
 

Page 3



 

 
Conditions 

 
During the consultation period, Trading Standards proposed the following wording 
for conditions regarding refusals book, Challenge 25 and training and were agreed 
by the applicant: 
 
‘Refusals book 
 
A written log shall be kept of all refusals including refusals to sell alcohol. The 
Premises Licence Holder shall ensure that the refusals log is checked, signed and 
dated on a weekly basis by the store manager/manageress. 
 
The refusals log will be kept and maintained at the premises and will be available 
for inspection immediately upon request by Hampshire Constabulary and any 
responsible authority. 
The record of refusals will be retained for 12 months. 
 
Challenge 25 
 
There will be a Challenge 25 policy operating at the premises. Challenge 25 
means that the holder of the premises licence shall ensure that every individual, 
who visually appears to be under 25 years of age and is seeking to purchase or be 
supplied with alcohol at the premises or from the premises, shall produce 
identification proving that individual to be 18 years of age or older.  
 
Acceptable identification for the purposes of age verification will include a driving 
licence, passport or photographic identification bearing the “PASS” logo and the 
persons date of birth. 
 
If the person seeking alcohol is unable to produce acceptable means of 
identification, no sale or supply of alcohol will be made to or for that person.  
 
‘Challenge 25’ posters shall be displayed in prominent positions at the premises. 
 
Training  
 
Staff will be trained regarding appropriate precautions to prevent the sale of 
alcohol to persons under the age of 18, the signs and symptoms of drunk persons 
and the refusal of sale due to intoxication. Records will be kept of such training 
which must be signed and dated by the member of staff who has received that 
training.  
 
All staff will receive refresher training every six months as a minimum and records 
are to be kept of this refresher training which should be signed and dated by the 
member of staff who received that training.  
 
All training records will be made immediately available for inspection by 
Hampshire Constabulary and any responsible Authority upon request. Training 

Page 4



 

records will be kept for a minimum period of two years. Training records will be 
kept on the licensed premises to which they relate to.’ 
 
During the consultation period, the Police proposed the following wording for 
conditions regarding CCTV and were agreed by the applicant: 
 
‘CCTV 
 
The premises licence holder shall ensure that recordable CCTV is in place when 
licensable activity is taking place. This must be of a standard acceptable to the 
local Police. There shall be sufficient cameras to cover the alcohol display areas, 
till area and entrance / exit. Footage obtained must be retained for a minimum of 
28 days on a rolling basis. This must be made available in a format that can be 
viewed by Police and must be given to them on request.’ 
 
These are attached as Appendix D.   
 

 Representations 
 
Representations have been received from interested persons and these are 
shown in full in Appendix E.  
 
2 members of the public raised objections to the application.  These mainly relate 
to the Public Nuisance objective regarding noise nuisance and parking problems.  
Parking issues can also relate to the Public Safety objective. Some refer to anti-
social behaviour concerns which fall under the Crime and Disorder objective.   
 
To help mitigate the concern of making alcohol more accessible and appealing, 
the applicant has agreed to add to the operating schedule: 
 
‘No external advertising of alcohol on the shop front or in the shop window.’ 
 
To help mitigate the concern regarding litter, the applicant has agreed to add to 
the operating schedule: 
 
‘Provide a bin on site.’ 
 
These are attached as Appendix F 
 
1 member of the public has submitted representation in support of the application.  
This refers to the conduct of the applicant and the excellent service he 
experiences at Mr Vijaendrann’s licensed premises, Riley’s Convenience Store.   
 
This is attached at Appendix G. 
 

 Cumulative Impact Policy 
 
Some relevant representations received also refer to the number of other licensed 
premises already in the vicinity. Havant Borough Council does not have a 
cumulative impact policy therefore any comments regarding the number of 

Page 5



 

licensed premises in an area is not a matter for a licensing authority to take into 
consideration.   
 

4.0   Additional Budgetary Implications  
 

 N/A 
 
5.0 Background and relationship to the Corporate Strategy and Directorate 

Business Plan/s 
 

 N/A 
 
6.0   Options considered and reasons for the recommendation 

 

 Section 18(3) of the Licensing Act 2003 states that where relevant representations 
are made, the authority must hold a hearing to consider them and take steps as it 
considers appropriate for the promotion of the Licensing Objectives. 

 Section 18(4) of the Licensing Act 2003 specifies the steps an Authority may 
consider. 

 The Committee is obliged to determine this application with a view to promoting 
the licensing objectives, which are: 

 The prevention of crime and disorder; 

 Public safety; 

 The prevention of public nuisance; 

 The protection of children from harm. 
 

In making its deliberations, the Committee is obliged to have regard to the Councils own 
Licensing Policy and National Guidance.  The Committee must also have regard to the 
representations that have been made balanced against the conditions offered by the 
applicant and the evidence that it hears. 
 
The Committee must take one of the following steps, as it considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives: 
(a) grant the application 
(b) modify the conditions of the licence, by altering, omitting or adding to them 
(c) exclude any licensable activity from the scope of the licence to which the application 
relates; 
(d) refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor 
(e reject the application. 
 
The Committee should note that it cannot modify the conditions or reject the whole or 
part of the application merely because it considers it desirable to do so, it must be 
because it is appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
7.0   Resource Implications 
 

 Financial Implications – None  

 Human Resources Implications – None 

 Information Governance Implications – N/A 

Page 6



 

 Other Resource Implication (if appropriate) – N/A 
 
 
8.0   Legal Implications 

 

 None  
 

9.0   Risks 
 

 N/A 
 

10.0 Consultation 
 

 This premises licence application has been consulted on with all responsible 
authorities and the public under the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003.  

 
11.0 Communication 
 

 The application was advertised on Havant Borough Council’s website and public                
notice displayed at Beachlands Convenience Store and in the Hampshire 
Independent newspaper. 

 All interested parties will be sent a notice of decision following the hearing. 
 
12.0 Appendices: (include short summary of each appendix) 

 
Appendix A – Site map 
Appendix B – Application form and support information 
Appendix C – Mandatory conditions 
Appendix D – Trading Standards and Police conditions with email confirmation of 
acceptance 
Appendix E – Opposing representations  
Appendix F – Additions to operating schedule in light of representations and email 
confirmation of acceptance 
Appendix G - Supporting representation 

 
13.0 Background Papers 

 
13.1.N/A 
 

Agreed and signed off by: 
Monitoring Officer: David Brown: 7th April 2020 
S151 Officer: Lydia Morrison: 1st April 2020 
Head of Service: Natalie Meagher: 1st April 2020 
 
Contact Officer:     Miss H Smith 
Job Title:   Licensing Officer 
Telephone:  023 9244 6653 
E-Mail:  hilary.smith@havant.gov.uk 
Date:    24th March 2020 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



APPENDIX B

Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



APPENDIX C 
 
ANNEX 1 - MANDATORY CONDITIONS 
 
1) No supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence - 

 
(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises  

licence; or 
(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his  

personal licence is suspended. 
 

2) Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made, or authorised by a person 
who holds a personal licence. 

 
Further Conditions added 1st October 2010 as amended 1st October 2014 
 
3. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age 

verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of 
alcohol. 

 
 (2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the  

supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy. 
 
 (3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18  

years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request,  
before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either – 
 

(a) a holographic mark, or 
   (b) an ultraviolet feature. 
 
Further Conditions added 28th May 2014 
 
4 (1) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off  
  the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.  

 
(2) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1-  
 
 (a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;  
 
 (b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula : P = D + ( D x V )  where- 
 
   (i) P is the permitted price,  

(ii) D is the rate of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged 
on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and  

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value  
added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;  

 
(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a  

  premises licence-  
 

(i) the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or  
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under 
such a licence;  
 

Page 35



 (d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club  
 premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a  
 capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and  
 
 (e) “valued added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax 
 Act 1994.3 
 
(3) Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this
 paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be
 taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.  
 
(4) (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 

2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the next day 
(“the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.  

 
 (2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of 

alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the 
second day. 

 

 

Page 36



 

 
i 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX D 
 
POLICE AND TRADING 
STANDARDS 
CONDITIONS WITH 
EMAIL CONFIRMATION 
OF ACCEPTANCE  
 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



Page 1

Section 1

Page 39



Page 2Page 40



Page 3Page 41



Page 4Page 42



Page 5

Section 2

Page 43



Page 6Page 44



Page 7Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46



Page 9

Section 3

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



 

 
i 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX E 
 
OPPOSING 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 50



(Transcript of representation received on 21 February 2020 (See below) 
(address, signatures and names redacted)) 

Licensing Department 
Havant Borough Council 
Public Services Plaza 
Civic Centre Road 
Havant 
PO9 2AX 
  

18 February 2020 

For the Attention of Licensing Department 

Dear Sir/Madam 

Reference: Unit 2, 9 Seafront, Hayling Island, POI ODE 

I write in connection with the above application for a premises licence. I live and work 
in the Beachland's area and therefore know the site well, I wish to strongly object for 

the proposed grant of a premises in this location. 

 a major tourist area with the fairground and arcades and residential 
homes on the beach front of Hayling Island. The site in question is within a stone 

throw of the current Premier Convenience Store located on the Seafront Road 

The proposed site is particularly ill-considered for this reason.  The tourist trade on 

Hayling Island brings many visitors in the heat of the summer for the use of the 
beach encouraging all ages and visitors including children. The area in question 
already has a convenience with an alcohol licence which is almost in view of this 

site. It is not in the public safety to make alcohol more accessible and appealing with 
the offers that a shop will give being so close to the beach and on the fair ground. 

This specific unit is in direct view of the entrance to the fair which people enter and 

exit throughout the year, It will encourage drinking in family areas and potentially 
causing issues and fatalities with the sea and beach within a stone throw. The safety 

of children when people are intoxicated shall also should be considered with the 
safety of children. 

The added location with sale of alcohol will not help with the prevention of crime and 
nuisance and is a complete irresponsible idea for the safety of the island residents 
and visiting tourists. This will also create an increased litter problem on the beautiful 

beaches here at Hayling Island with not enough bins to cope with the added waste 
when alcohol sales increase. 

I know that the owners the neighbouring business and residents are in agreeance of 

these views due to my above points. 

If this application is to be decided by councillors, please take this as notice that I 
would like to be informed of this decision.  

Page 1

Section 1

Page 51



 

Yours faithfully 

Page 2Page 52



Page 3Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 54



Page 5

Section 2

Page 55



Page 6Page 56



APPENDIX F

Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
i 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX G 
 
SUPPORTING 
REPRESENTATION 
 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 62



Page 1

Section 1

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64


	Agenda
	2 Licensing Hearing
	Appendix A - Site Map
	Appendix B - Application form and supporting information
	Appendix C - Mandatory conditions alcohol - off sales
	Appendix D - Police and Trading Standards conditions with email confirmation of acceptance
	Appendix E - Opposing Representations
	Appendix F - Additions to Operating Schedule in Light of Representations and Email Confirmation of Acceptance
	Appendix G -  Supporting Representations




